## 2016-2017 University Senate Minutes for the 22-April-2016 Meeting

2016-17 University Senate Officers: Presiding Officer Chavonda Mills, Presiding Officer Elect and Secretary to be determined at this meeting.

PRESENT (32) Laura Ahrens, Kay Anderson, Alex Blazer, Robert Blumenthal, Louis Bourne, Hauke Busch, Rodica

Cazacu, Jan Clark (Hoffman), Jolene Cole, Nicole DeClouette, Josie Doss, Renee Fontenot, David Johnson, Juan Ling, Altimease Lowe, Ben McMillan, Chavonda Mills, Kevin Morris, Lyndall Muschell, Christine Mutiti, Stephanie Opperman, Amy Pinney, Joanne Previts, Barbara Roquemore, Carol Sapp, Susan Steele,

John Swinton, Ashley Taylor, Tom Toney, Craig Turner, Shaundra Walker, Jenq-Foung Yao.

ABSENT (4) Heidi Fowler, Emily Gomez, Will Hobbs, Claire Sanders.

REGRETS (14) Susan Allen, Kelli Brown, Ruth Carter, Kimberly Cossey, Steve Dorman, Mary Jean Land, Mary

Magoulick, David McIntyre, Costas Spirou, James Winchester, and the four selected staff senators of the

2016-2017 university senate who were not named at the time of this meeting.

GUESTS (6)

15 (0)				
First	Last	2015-2016	Description	
Name	Name	Committee	Role on University Senate or Postion at the University	
Charles	Faber	RPIPC	Student Appointee to RPIPC	
Monica	Ketchie	FAPC	Assistant Professor, Nursing	
Andy	Lewter	SAPC	Dean of Students	
Mark	Pelton	None	Associate Vice President for Strategic Initiatives	
Jessica	Swain	None	Associate Registrar	
Cameron	Yeo	SAPC	Student Appointee to SAPC	

<u>CALL TO ORDER</u>: Chavonda Mills, Presiding Officer of the 2016-2017 University Senate, called the organizational meeting of the 2016-2017 University Senate to order at 3:30 p.m.

AGENDA: A motion to approve the agenda was made and seconded. A correction to the motion number of the slate of nominees motion had been made since email circulation of the agenda. The motion number, as corrected, was 1516.CN.003.O. One addition to the agenda, receiving an information update on the Strategic Plan from Mark Pelton, was offered from the floor and accepted by those present. One deletion to the agenda, receiving an information update on Veteran's Issues from Jordan Wilcher, was offered from the floor and accepted by those present. This informational update was given at the 2:00p-3:15p Friday 22 Apr 2016 university senate meeting to accommodate the schedule of presenter Jordan Wilcher. The agenda was approved as amended.

<u>MINUTES</u>: As the previous meeting of the University Senate immediately preceded this meeting, the minutes for that meeting (2:00p-3:15p on Friday 22 Apr 2016) were not yet available for review.

<u>UNIVERSITY SENATOR PINS</u>: Chavonda Mills distributed university senator pins to the first-time members of the University Senate who were present at this meeting. Pin recipients were

- 1. Elected Faculty Senators Hauke Busch, Rodica Cazacu, and Ashley Taylor;
- 2. Presidential Appointee Robert Blumenthal; and
- 3. Selected Student Senators Laura Ahrens and Altimease Lowe.

Recipients not present to receive their pins were Kimberly Cossey and Will Hobbs. Pins will be provided to these two individuals at a future time.

#### **NEW BUSINESS:**

**COMMITTEE REPORT**: This being an organizational meeting, there was only one committee report.

1. <u>SubCommittee on Nominations</u> (SCoN) – Chavonda Mills Officers: Chair Chavonda Mills, Secretary Craig Turner, No Vice-Chair position for this committee.

- a. <u>MOTION 1516.CN.003.0</u> (SLATE OF NOMINEES FOR 2016-2017 UNIVERSITY SENATE) On behalf of the committee, Chavonda Mills, SCoN Chair, presented the motion: *To adopt the slate of nominees for the 2016-2017 University Senate officers and committee members as proposed in the supporting documentation.*
- b. **SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS** There were two supporting documents accompanying this motion.
  - i. *Slate of Nominees for US 2016-2017*. This Excel document contained the slate of nominees proposed by the 2015-2016 Subcommittee on Nominations to serve on the committees and as officers of the 2016-2017 University Senate.
  - ii. Report of Bylaws Compliance for the 2016-2017 US Committees This pdf document provided verification of the slate's compliance with university senate bylaws. This report is required as articulated in the university senate bylaws. The relevant bylaw is quoted here. V.Section1.D.2.e. Compliance Report. The Subcommittee shall prepare a report that demonstrates that the composition of all committees complies with the requirements of these bylaws. Such a report shall be submitted to the Executive Committee when the initial committee recommendations are made and any time that changes are proposed to committee membership.

## c. **DISCUSSION**

- i. <u>SCoN Report</u> The proposed slate of nominees to be voted on by the University Senate was described by Chavonda Mills, on behalf of the 2015-2016 SCoN, as follows.
  - Committee preferences and nominations for university senate officers (Presiding Officer Elect and Secretary) were invited from all elected faculty senators.
  - A call for volunteers to serve on committees was made to the corps of instruction. Each volunteer was invited to express preference for committee service.
  - Informed by these individual committee preferences, the 2015-2016 Subcommittee on Nominations prepared this slate of nominees for your consideration.
  - At present, there are neither selected staff senators nor appointees to RPIPC or SAPC for Staff Council on the slate as the deliberation by the Staff Council to determine these individuals is ongoing. Once these individuals are named by the Staff Council, their committee assignments will be presented to the university senate in the form of a motion.

#### ii. Officers

Chavonda Mills noted that the 2015-2016 Subcommittee on Nominations had nominated Nicole DeClouette to serve as the Presiding Officer Elect of the 2016-2017 University Senate. Chavonda Mills invited other nominations for this officer position from the floor. No nominations were received from the floor. This nomination invitation is required as articulated in the university senate bylaws. The relevant bylaw is quoted here.

II. Section 4.A. Presiding Officer and Presiding Officer Elect. The University Senate shall have a Presiding Officer, who presides at all meetings of the University Senate, and a Presiding Officer Elect, who shall assume the position of Presiding Officer the following year. Only elected faculty senators are eligible to serve as Presiding Officer or Presiding Officer Elect. The election of the Presiding Officer Elect shall proceed as follows. At the spring organizational meeting of the University Senate, the outgoing Subcommittee on Nominations shall nominate one elected faculty senator from the incoming University Senate. The Presiding Officer at the spring organizational meeting shall then call for other nominations from the floor. Should this result in more than one nominee for Presiding Officer Elect, all members of the incoming University Senate shall vote by secret ballot. The nominee receiving the most votes shall be the Presiding Officer Elect. The terms of service for the Presiding Officer and Presiding Officer

Elect shall begin with the adjournment of this spring organizational meeting, and shall end when her/his successor assumes office.

Chavonda Mills noted that the Subcommittee on Nominations had nominated Craig Turner to serve as the Secretary of the 2016-2017 university senate. Chavonda Mills invited other nominations for this officer position from the floor. No nominations were received from the floor. This nomination invitation is required as articulated in the university senate bylaws. The relevant bylaw is quoted here.

II. Section 4.B. Secretary. The University Senate shall elect a Secretary at its spring organizational meeting who shall be responsible for keeping minutes at all meetings of the University Senate. Only elected faculty senators are eligible to serve as Secretary. The election of the Secretary of the University Senate shall proceed as follows. At the spring organizational meeting of the University Senate, the outgoing Subcommittee on Nominations shall nominate one elected faculty senator from the incoming University Senate. The Presiding Officer at the spring organizational meeting shall then call for other nominations from the floor. Should this result in more than one nominee for Secretary, all members of the incoming University Senate shall vote by secret ballot. The nominee receiving the most votes shall be the Secretary. The term of service of the Secretary shall begin at the call to order of the first meeting of the University Senate following the spring organizational meeting at which (s)he is elected, and shall end when her/his successor assumes office.

d. **SENATE ACTION** Motion 1516.CN.003.O was approved with no further discussion.

## ELECTION OF UNIVERSITY SENATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE ASSOCIATE PROVOST SEARCH COMMITTEE:

- 1. The Provost had requested that the University Senate identify a representative to serve on the Associate Provost Search Committee.
- 2. Nominations for this position were invited and only one nominee was identified: Chavonda Mills.
- 3. Chavonda Mills accepted the nomination to serve.
- 4. The University Senate elected Chavonda Mills to serve as its representative to the Associate Provost Search Committee by a voice vote.

#### **INFORMATION ITEMS:**

- 1. **GOVERNANCE RETREAT UPDATE** Chavonda Mills
  - a. <u>PLANNING IN PROGRESS</u> The following 2016 governance retreat information was shared.
    - i. LOCATION: The retreat site is the Rock Eagle 4-H Center.
    - ii. DATE: The retreat date is Tuesday, 9 Aug 2016.
    - iii. FORMAT: The retreat is presently proposed as an all-day affair from 9:00am to 4:00pm.
    - iv. <u>INVITEES</u>: All members of the committees of the 2016-2017 University Senate university senators, appointees, designees, volunteers are invited to attend the retreat.
    - v. <u>PLANNING COMMITTEE</u>: Chavonda Mills is chairing the committee with members Jolene Cole, Nicole DeClouette, Lyndall Muschell, Susan Steele, John Swinton, and Craig Turner. If you are interested in serving on this planning committee, contact Chavonda Mills. This planning committee will meet next Friday (29 Apr 2016) following the university senate committee organizational meetings.
    - vi. <u>SURVEY</u> A survey will be circulated next week requesting dietary preferences, transportation sign-up, confirmation of intent to attend, and preferences on proposed retreat agenda items. It is requested that you complete the survey in a timely manner, preferably by 13 May 2016.
    - vii. <u>STAY TUNED</u>: More information about this retreat will be circulated by email as it becomes available.
- 2. University System of Georgia Faculty Council (USGFC) Chavonda Mills

- a. <u>UPDATE</u> Chavonda Mills provided selected highlights of the 15 April 2016 meeting of the USGFC noting an electronic copy of the full report will be provided to Craig Turner (University Senate Secretary) for inclusion as a supporting document to the minutes of this meeting. See the supporting document *USGFC\_Report\_04-15-16* for details including Chancellor Huckaby's remarks about campus carry legislation, the USG Student Code of Conduct, and merit increases to salaries of employees of USG institutions.
- b. **QUESTIONS** Questions from the floor were invited.

Question1: Does the Georgia College University Senate have a plan regarding campus carry? <u>Answer1</u>: Chavonda Mills responded to indicate that as Presiding Officer of the 2016-2017 University Senate, she had been asked by Provost Brown to be available over the summer as a representative of the university senate to inform a campus plan if the campus carry bill is not vetoed by Governor Deal.

## 3. **STRATEGIC PLAN** – Mark Pelton

- a. <u>UPDATE</u> At the University Senate meeting on 19 Feb 2016, I updated you on the strategic planning process to that point. Since that time, the thirteen subcommittees—not including the Liberal Arts Renewal Project—have submitted their reports, with measurable goals and objectives, to the steering committee. Those subcommittee reports are now available for campus review on our strategic planning web pages located at <a href="www.gcsu.edu/strategic-planning">www.gcsu.edu/strategic-planning</a>
  - Please understand that all aspects of the thirteen reports may not necessarily be adopted for use in the strategic plan. Instead, the subcommittee reports are being utilized by the Strategic Planning Steering Committee to inform the development of the university's strategic plan.

I want to take just a moment to talk about the strategic planning process.

- When we (the steering committee) received the thirteen subcommittee reports, we reviewed them and grouped their proposed goals together based on similarities, with the result being four distinct goal categories. The steering committee was then divided into four working subgroups, with each assigned one of the goal categories. The four sub-groups were asked to complete an electronic discussion and develop, at most, two overarching goals within their assigned categories. That has been done, and the four work groups are now at work pulling from the thirteen subcommittee reports to develop a list of measurable objectives to support their assigned overarching goals. Once this has been done, we will develop supporting text to accompany the goals and objectives.
- The Strategic Planning Steering Committee had hoped to have a draft strategic planning report ready for presentation to University Senate at this meeting, but mission review has absorbed much of our time. For that reason, the steering committee will continue working through the summer, and we will coordinate with Chavonda Mills (Presiding Officer of the 2016-2017 University Senate) to find the best time early in the coming academic year to present the draft report to the university senate. Our goal still is to have the strategic plan reviewed and approved by the end of September 2016, so that it can be used during the FY18 budget cycle.
- The strategic planning steering committee also was asked to review the university's mission, vision, and values. At the February 2016 university senate meeting, I shared with you that a draft vision statement had been developed and posted to the strategic planning web pages. We have just completed draft mission and value statements, and these are ready for your review and comment. I have handouts here with the draft vision, values, and mission statements, and will provide an electronic copy to Craig Turner (University Senate Secretary) for inclusion as a supporting document to the minutes of this meeting. These draft statements will also be posted on the strategic planning web pages and announced to the campus next week via Front Page. Your thoughts on the draft statements would be appreciated, so please contact any member of the steering committee or email us at <a href="mailto:strategic.planning@gcsu.edu">strategic.planning@gcsu.edu</a>.

Thank you very much for the opportunity to provide this update.

- b. <u>UNIVERSITY SENATE REPRESENTATIVE</u> Chavonda Mills reminded those present that Jan Clark serves as the university senate representative on the Strategic Planning Steering Committee.
- c. **QUESTIONS** Questions from the floor regarding the strategic plan were invited. There were none.

#### ADJOURN:

- 1. <u>ATTENDANCE AND THE SIGN-IN SHEET</u> Chavonda Mills requested that each individual present at the meeting sign the university senator attendance sheet or guest sign-in sheet on their way out if they hadn't already signed in.
- 2. <u>MOTION TO ADJOURN</u> As there was no further business, a motion to adjourn was made, seconded, and approved. The meeting was adjourned at 3:53 p.m.

#### **SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:**

- 1. The document *USGFC\_Report\_04-15-16* (MSWord and pdf formats) is the report referenced by Chavonda Mills in the University System of Georgia Faculty Council Information Item.
- 2. The document *Vision-mission-values for University Senate 4 14 16 Version* (MSWord and pdf formats) is the document containing draft vision, mission, and values referenced by Mark Pelton in the Strategic Plan Information Item.

# **University System of Georgia Faculty Council Spring Meeting**

Report made to University Senate April 22, 2016

# **Meeting Details:**

Date: April 15, 2016

Location: Valdosta State University

Time: 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.

GCSU USGFC Representative: Dr. Chavonda Mills

## I. WELCOME

VSU Representative welcomed attendees.

#### II. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by USGFC Chair, Professor Juone Brown, FVSU, at 9:05 am

## III. REMARKS

## a. Chancellor Hank M. Huckaby

Remarks
This year's session was challenging and reflective of the critical dynamic in the country in part due to the Presidential election
<ul> <li>NRA and Georgia Carry were not promoters of the campus carry bill</li> <li>If Governor Deal vetoes campus carry, the bill will return next year</li> <li>Faculty member participation in legislative session increased significantly due to campus carry; faculty demonstrators were forcibly removed from legislative session</li> <li>If faculty want to voice opposition to campus carry, do so as citizens and not on behalf of USG</li> <li>Student Code of Conduct and how institutions address sexual assault and racial harassment complaints had political repercussions; Ga Tech lost a capital project in the budget due to its handling of student code of conduct; led to the proposal and adoption of standard processes for addressing student behavior; USG institutions must have consistency in student code of conduct policies.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Instructional budget driven by current formula (earned \$37 million), but state may not appropriate total amount</li> <li>Funding formula based solely on enrollment</li> <li>16 USG institutions had enrollment growth, but schools generating funds are not receiving more funds. Further discussion required on how to make budget more equitable. Currently, growing institutions subsidize institutions with decreasing enrollment.</li> <li>Institutions in south Georgia are most challenging regarding enrollment growth; efforts being made to increase out-of-state enrollment at low enrollment institutions</li> <li>Anticipate budget cuts for institutions with no enrollment growth; system office will work with these institutions on how to manage cuts</li> <li>Institutions are having difficulty managing financial aid; 9 institutions with critical management issues of federal financial aid funds; possible \$18 million to be returned to federal gov't</li> <li>System office will assist with training financial aid officers at small</li> </ul>

	institutions; faculty are asked to assist by documenting that students complete at least 60% of semester; otherwise institution is penalized			
Questions	Can you provide an update on salary raises?			
	<ul> <li>Salary raises were approved; merit based 0%-5%; \$59 million allocated for salary increases</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>How will the student code of conduct policy affect classroom management and why is the policy being instituted over the summer without faculty input?</li> <li>System must ensure USG institutions are following the law, giving students due process, and being fair</li> <li>Must train and retrain</li> <li>Bottom line from BOR: policies are not debatable; there will not be 29 different approaches</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>Expect lawsuits dealing with due process; how it is prescribed and implemented</li> </ul>			
	What are your thoughts on the campus carry bill?			
	<ul> <li>If bill is signed, it becomes effective July 1; costly effort to train campuses-where is money coming from?</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>Taser bill? One signed and not the other?-hard to say; taser bill will embolden students to be more mischievous.</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>Effective date if Governor neither signs or vetoes bill, when will it become a law? May 3rd</li> </ul>			
	How many systems across the county have the campus carry bill? About 10 states; data shows there hasn't been a huge negative impact			
	Should we expect more campus consolidations?			
	Future consolidations will be driven by future economics and enrollment; public higher education is changing			
	How can we direct communications directly to the Chancellor?			
	Welcome comments/ideas regarding free speech, diversity, guns on campus, safe space, etc			
	• Diversity is an issue that needs to be addressed-be proactive rather than reactive; efforts to have chief diversity officers at all USG institutions			
	Why administrative positions are increasing in number, but vacant faculty positions are not being filled?			
	<ul> <li>Not encouraging more administrative positions</li> <li>Faculty lines are being redirected from low producing programs, faculty retirees, etc.</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>There is a critical need of a renewed commitment from USG for gateway courses</li> <li>Students take ecore courses or courses at sister institution as transient and transfer back to home institution</li> <li>System adopted co-req model as default strategy; prevents students from</li> </ul>			
	completing an entire semester of remedial courses that don't count towards graduation			

• Learning support reforms-math department chairs researched math requirement for most degrees; most majors require probability and statics based math and don't require calculus based math

Why was the announcement of overlay removal so abrupt and without faculty input?

- Discussion originated in general education council; students weren't
  meeting overlay requirement when they transferred within the USG;
  didn't want students penalized from graduation if they didn't have an
  overlay
- Implementation was abrupt because when the intent and scope of a policy change can benefit students immediately, must be done immediately

Will the ADP contract be renewed?

• ADP will not be renewed; with consequences b/c certain things that ADP can do, but PeopleSoft can't do

What are your thoughts on diversity within USG?

- Need to get to the point where discussion is not needed
- USG understands the value and importance of diversity even if they are not "waving a banner" advertising support of diversity

May you prioritize the top three items USGFC can provide you?

- Statement on value of communication; frustrated that information is not filtering down to appropriate individuals at universities
- Embracing and broadly supportive of what the system office is trying to achieve regarding campus safety (sexual assaults), student code of conduct, and required trainings
- If Governor vetoes gun bill, system office will draft a strategy for next year; BOR will be involved and will request faculty input
- Communicate a work agenda from group that can bridge from one year to the next so agenda items aren't repetitive

#### IV. Reports

- a. Communications Ad Hoc Committee-Dr. Chavonda Mills
  - i. USGFC website up-to-date
  - ii. Attempts to establish USGFC email address through system office was unsuccessful
  - iii. Committee will make recommendations on how to improve communications between system office and USG institutions faculty/staff
- b. AAUP Conference Summary-Dr. Robert Scott, Georgia AAUP President
  - i. AAUP summer institute July 21-24
  - ii. Institutions need to increase level of faculty participation in drafting budgets
  - iii. HBCU faculty governance issues are unique and specific
  - iv. Need strategies on how to motivate faculty members to participate in faculty governance
- c. USG Staff Council-Yvonne Landers
  - i. Concerns regarding reductions, staff morale
  - ii. Need more communication between faculty and staff council
- d. USG Retirement Council Chair-Dennis Marks

- i. Focus on healthcare insurance
  - 1. retirees moved to private health care exchange with implementation Jan 1, 2016
  - 2. all employees on exchange with wide range of policies and individual retirees responsible for selecting a policy
- ii. Needs to be improved communication between retirees, institutions, and system office
- iii. Suggest that faculty senate have a retiree representative on the senate; will ensure that retirees remain well-informed of issues affecting them (primarily health care benefits)
- iv. Next meeting: Oct 21, 2016 at Middle Ga State University next meeting

### V. Old Business

- a. Presidential Salary Resolution
  - i. Economics have overtaken higher education
- b. Bylaws
  - i. USGFC Chair Juone Brown will send proposed modifications for review
  - ii. USGFC Membership should be for two years for continuity-suggestion for institutions
  - iii. Need to add AAUP, USG retirement council chair, and USG staff council chair to bylaws as non-voting members

#### VI. New Business

- a. Election of New Officers
  - i. Chair Elect Nominees
    - 1. Dr. Peggy Mach-VSU
    - 2. Dr. Elisabeth Desnoyers-Cola-Armstrong State (elected)
  - ii. Secretary
    - 1. Dr. Doug Moodie
    - 2. Dr. Peggy Mach-VSU (elected)
- b. Campus Carry
  - i. Should we send a resolution? Will adopt VSU resolution and send to the Governor
- c. Concerns of Faculty
  - i. Safety of Personal Data (Form 1098c)-received tax service coupon
    - 1. Jackson Hewitt was not authorized by USG to send communication
    - 2. No breach of personal information because sent to shared service on behalf of Jackson Hewitt
  - ii. Role of faculty within the USG
    - 1. USGFC should have a voice (a representative) on USG committees
    - 2. Need to determine which system committees should have representatives
  - iii. Searches for top administrators
    - 1. Need transparency
  - iv. Consolidations
    - 1. Input as to which schools consolidate and the process of consolidation
- d. Meetings
  - i. Location: alternate between Atlanta for Spring and institutions outside Atlanta for Fall meetings
  - ii. Proposed dates: base on Chancellor's schedule

Note: official meeting minutes will be shared once provided by the USGFC Secretary



# VISION, VALUES, and MISSION

Public Review Version - April 14, 2016

#### VISION

Georgia College will be a nationally preeminent public liberal arts university.

#### **VALUES**

The Georgia College experience, which is rooted in the liberal arts and provides the foundation for a lifetime of learning, growth, and academic excellence, is based upon these shared values:

- The pursuit of knowledge and truth in service to the public good;
- The transformative effect of service, leadership, and collaborative engaged learning experiences both in and beyond the classroom;
- Sound ethical principles including integrity, professionalism, reason, respect, and responsibility in discourse and actions;
- Diversity and inclusion in all its forms to enrich the educational experience.

#### MISSION

Georgia College is the state's only designated public liberal arts university.

We fulfill this mission through a commitment to:

<u>An Expansive Educational Experience</u>. We challenge our students through innovative teaching. The Georgia College student will think clearly and critically in creatively addressing societal issues.

Undergraduate study encompasses multi-disciplinary intellectual encounters with both enduring and contemporary questions, intensive study in the major, exposure to artistic endeavors, opportunities for scholarly research, and capstone experiences that integrate and apply learning in a residential college setting.

Post-baccalaureate programs bridge the gap between theory and practice with a focus on regional needs, preparing graduates for professional advancement, life-long intellectual pursuits, and informed participation in today's complex society.

<u>Highly Intentional Engagement</u>. We collaborate with community partners to address mutually identified needs while advancing students' academic and civic learning, in crafting informed, global citizen leaders ready to serve the public good. Engagement opportunities include undergraduate research, study abroad, internships, community service, and leadership experiences, both in and outside the classroom.

<u>Diversity and Inclusive Excellence</u>. We create an environment of belonging within a campus community that values diversity of thought, experiences, identifications, abilities, cultures, and ethnicities. Georgia College faculty, staff, and students intentionally embrace inclusivity to advance excellence through diversity.

<u>Preparation for Leadership</u>. We encourage all students to develop a breadth of leadership competencies, including self-awareness, empathy for cultural differences, and effective interpersonal communication. Georgia College students become citizen leaders through engagement with purposeful curricular and co-curricular leadership experiences.